
 

 

 

Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 38372 
Direct Dial 01629 538372 
Ask for Anne Barrett 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Cabinet Member meeting - Young People 
 
 
 

                                                              Friday, 30 October 2020 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Cabinet Member meeting - Young 
People to be held at 11.00 am on Tuesday, 10 November 2020  
 
This meeting will be held virtually. As a member of the public you can view 
the virtual meeting via the County Council's website. The website will 
provide details of how to access the meeting, the agenda for which is set 
out below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services  
 
A G E N D A 
 
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
1.   Declarations of Interest  

 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Young People held on 6 October 2020 
 

To consider the non-exempt reports of the Executive Director for Children's 
Services on: 
 
3 (a)   Confirmation of Nominations of School Governors (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
3 (b)   Children’s Services Capital Programme 2020-21 - Allocation of Section 106 

Capital (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

To consider the joint reports of the Executive Director for Children's Services and 
Director of Finance and ICT on: 
 
4 (a)   Performance and Budget Monitoring/Forecast Outturn 2020/2021 as at 

Quarter 2 (Pages 7 - 24) 
 

4 (b)   Dedicated Schools Grant Monitoring 2020-21 – Quarter 2 (as at 30 
September 2020) (Pages 25 - 28) 
 

 



 

 

PUBLIC                                                                                                                                                                          
                                                               
                
MINUTES of a meeting of the CABINET MEMBER – YOUNG PEOPLE held on 6 
October 2020. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Cabinet Member - Councillor A Dale  
 

Also in attendance – Councillors J Patten and J Coyle  
 

41/20  MINUTES  RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings of the 
Cabinet Member for Young People held on 4 August 2020 be confirmed as a 
correct record. 
 
42/20  CONFIRMATION OF NOMINATIONS OF SCHOOL GOVERNORS  
The Cabinet Member was asked to confirm the nominations of persons listed within 
the report to serve as local authority school governors.  Appointments made by 
governing boards would be subject to the completion of a Declaration of Eligibility 
form, a proof of identity check and an enhanced DBS check. 
 
  RESOLVED that the Cabinet Member confirm the nominations for 
persons to serve as local authority governors. 
 
43/20  YOUNG PEOPLE CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020-21 FURTHER 
ALLOCATION  The Cabinet Member was asked to note allocations approved 
under delegated powers by the Executive Director for Children’s Services and the 
DfE additional School Condition Allocation for 2020-21 and to approve a further 
allocation to the Children’s Services Capital Programme 2020-21 for an expansion 
project at Kilburn Junior School.  

 
The report outlined the background to the approval of funding for the design 

of a one class extension to increase the School’s capacity from 170 to 200.  This 
was a high priority basic need case with the accommodation being required for 
September 2021. A budget cost of £400,000 had been received for the scheme and 
a further £350,000 school condition funding was required in addition to the already 
approved £50,000. 

 
Cabinet had approved the Children’s Services Capital Programme 2020-21 

which left a balance of £3,821,794 from the 2020-21 School Condition allocation 
and an overall unallocated balance of £6,062,026.  Approvals made under 
delegated powers by the Executive Director for Children’s Services for allocations 
from the 2019-20 Children’s Services Capital budget were set out in Appendix A. 
The allocations totalled £232,000, leaving an overall unallocated balance of 
£5,830,026.  The DfE announced an additional School Condition Allocation of 
£3,322,356 for 2020-21 which increased the overall unallocated balance to 
£9,152,382.   

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

2 
 

Following approval of the allocation for Kilburn Junior School, a balance of 
£6,794,150 would remain from the 2020-21 School Condition allocation and an 
overall unallocated balance of £8,802,382 was available for future allocations.  
Work was in hand to provide a full breakdown of funds by years for future Cabinet 
meeting. 

 
 The report also sought approval to commence a procurement exercise to 
commission services to undertake works associated with these schemes/budgets if 
necessary.  These would normally take the form of a competitive tender process, 
but a separate report would be submitted seeking approval if it was decided that 
using a Framework was the best option. 
 

RESOLVED that the Cabinet Member (1) noted the allocations approved 
under delegated powers by the Executive Director for Children’s Services from the 
2019-20 Childrens Service’s Capital budget totalling £232,000; 
 

(2) noted the additional £3,322,356 School Condition Allocation for 2020-21 
from the DfE; and  

 
(3) approved the allocation of £350,000 school condition funding from the 

2020-21 Children’s Services Capital budget to the classroom project at Kilburn 
Junior School. 
 

Page 2



 

1 
 

 
 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE  
 

10 November 2020 
 

Report of Executive Director for Children’s Services  
 

CONFIRMATION OF NOMINATIONS OF SCHOOL GOVERNORS 
 
1.  Purpose of report 
 
To ask the Cabinet member to confirm the nominations of persons to serve as local 
authority school governors. 
 
2.  Information and Analysis   
 
Nominations to school governing boards are proposed as set out below.  
 
The Cabinet member is asked to confirm the nominations of persons to serve on the 
governing boards of these schools. 
 
Any appointments made by governing boards will be subject to the completion of a 
Declaration of Eligibility form, a proof of identity check and an enhanced DBS check. 
 
3.  Other considerations  
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered:- 
prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity and health, legal, financial, 
personnel and property considerations. 
 
4.  Background Papers 
 
Registration forms of applicants. 
 
5.  Key Decision? 
 
No 
 
6.  Officer’s Recommendation 
 
That the nominations for persons to serve as local authority governors are confirmed. 
 
 

Jane Parfrement 
Executive Director for Children’s Services 

PUBLIC 
Agenda Item No. 3 (a) 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3(a)



 

2 
 

The Cabinet member is asked to confirm the nominations of the following persons to serve 
as local authority governors. 
 
 
Name School Nominating 

Councillor 
Appointment 

Amber Valley    
W Bates Mugginton Primary School D Taylor New appointment 
C Emmas-Williams Codnor Primary School R Ashton Re-appointment 
S Marshall-Clarke Woodbridge Junior School A Dale Re-appointmet 
R Wiggins The Curzon Primary School C Short New Appointment 
    
Bolsover    
W Greensmith Glebe Junior School J Coyle Re-appointment 
    
Chesterfield    
A Knyhynyckyj Huloke Park Primary School B Lewis New Appoitment 
D Ward Hasland Junior School D Allen New Appointment 
    
Derbyshire Dales    
A Colmar Tansley Primary School S Burfoot Re-appointment 
R Costello Bradwell Junior School J Twigg New appointment 
C Nettell Grindleford Primary School J Twigg Re-appointment 
C Thomas Baslow St Anne’s Primary School J Atkin New appointment 
K Wigley Parwich Primary School S Spencer New appointment 
    
High Peak    
T Cameron 
Faulkner 

Furness Vale Primary School R George New appointment 

K Holtam Hadfield Infant School B Woods Re-appointment 
    
North East    
J Harvey Dronfield Junior School A Dale Re-appointment 
    
South Derbyshire    
M Whitehead Melbourne Junior School L Chilton New appointment 
    
    
    
 

Page 4



1 

PUBLIC       Agenda Item No. 3 (b) 

Author: Jill Beacham (x36549) 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE 

10 November 2020 

 Report of the Executive Director for Children’s Services 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020-21- ALLOCATION 
OF SECTION 106 CAPITAL (YOUNG PEOPLE) 

1. Purpose of Report

To approve the allocation of Section 106 developer contributions to The
Ecclesbourne School to repay their expenditure in relation to their
expansion to meet growth from housing.

2. Information and Analysis

There is a high level of housing growth in the normal area of The
Ecclesbourne School and over the last 5 years, the academy has
undertaken a programme of expansion to increase its capacity. To meet
the need in a timely way, the academy funded the projects ahead of
receipt of the associated Section 106 developer funds.  On 22 February
2018, Cabinet (minute number 60/18) approved £869,317.43 towards the
project to build an English Block which had an overall cost of £2.7M. The
following funding has been received by DCC and is available to allocate
to that project.

Radbourne Lane Phase 1 AVA/2009/0359 £380,627.40 

The proposal therefore is to approve the payment of £380,627.40 to The 
Ecclesbourne School to refund them for the expenditure on the expansion 
project and meet the requirements of the Section 106 legal agreement. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3(b)



 
 

2 
 

3. Financial Considerations  
 
The financial considerations are explained in Section 2.  As this is an 
academy, the funds will be transferred under a legal agreement and 
against confirmation of expenditure.  The project was procured and 
managed by the Trust. 

 
4. Social Value Considerations 

 
This funding is to ensure that there is sufficient capacity at the school and 
meet the Council’s statutory duty. 
 

5. Other Considerations     
 

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered:- prevention of crime & disorder, equality of opportunity, 
environmental, health, legal & human rights, human resources, property 
and transport considerations. 

 
6. Key Decision   No 
 
7. Call-in   
 

Is it necessary for the call-in period to be waived in respect of the 
decisions being proposed in the report?  No 

 
8. Background Papers   

  
These are held on file in the Children’s Services Development Section.  

 
9. Officer Recommendation    
 

It is recommended that the Cabinet Member: 
 

Approves the allocation of £380,627.40 to The Ecclesbourne School in 
respect of the English Block project. 

 
 

 
Jane Parfrement 

Executive Director for Children’s Services 
 

Page 6



 

Version 1  Page 1 

Public                                                                            Agenda Item No. 4 (a) 
 

Author: Karen Gurney (x38755)   
                                                                                      

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE 

10 November 2020 

Joint Report of the Executive Director of Children's Services and the 
Director of Finance & ICT 

PERFORMANCE AND BUDGET MONITORING/FORECAST OUTTURN 
2020/2021 AS AT QUARTER 2 

(Young People) 

1 Purpose of the Report 

To provide the Cabinet Member with an update of the Council Plan 
performance position and the revenue budget position of the Young 
People portfolio for 2020/2021 up to the end of September 2020 (Quarter 
2). 

To note the request being made to Cabinet for approval for the creation 
of an earmarked reserve to cover the expected costs of temporary 
additional staff within the Quality Assurance team that will fall into 
financial year 2021-22. 

2 Information and Analysis 

2.1 Integrated Reporting 
 

This report presents both financial and Council Plan performance data. 
The performance summary sets out progress on the Council Plan 
deliverables and measures led by the Young People portfolio. The 
remainder of the report gives a summary and detail on the revenue 
budget position for the portfolio. 

 
As an overview, the report shows that progress is "good" for 2 out of the 
5 Council Plan deliverables led by portfolio, however the deliverables to 
ensure that all Council run children’s homes are ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ 
and to increase the percentage of children in schools which are ‘Good’ or 
‘Outstanding’ have been flagged as "requiring review". After the use of 
additional Covid-19 funding, the budget forecast position for 2020/2021 is 
an overspend of £6.461m. It is forecast that £1.126m of savings will have 
been achieved by the year end. This compares to target savings of 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4(a)



 

Version 1  Page 2 

£2.350m and the value of savings initiatives, which have been identified 
for implementation in the current year, of £2.350m. 
 

2.1 Performance Summary 
 
The following shows an overview for Quarter 2 of progress on the Council 
Plan deliverables and measures relating directly to Young People. 

 

Deliverable Progress Performance Measures Against Target 

Performance Measures Against Target 

 
Progress is "good" for 2 out of the 5 Council Plan deliverables led by the 
portfolio. Key areas of success are: 

 Improvements in children’s social care – services continue to respond and 
adapt effectively to Covid-19 challenges. The workforce remains strong, 
dedicated and resilient. Performance against statutory duties is strong and 
regular risk assessments ensure children are kept safe.  

 Embedding our newly designed Early help offer – this continues to 
progress well with teams developing and using creative approaches for 
engaging with individual children and families, for group work and for 
advice and support.  

 
Key areas for consideration are: 

Page 8



 

Version 1  Page 3 

 Reviewing the Council’s care and support offer for children with special 
educational needs and disabilities and adults – The Achieving Great 
Futures (AGF) workstream has been impacted by Covid-19.  Delays to 
the workstream have been mitigated in the overall delivery plan but 
there remains a risk to the project plan. 

 
Key areas to note are: 

 The “requiring review” rating for Council run children’s homes being 
‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ and for increasing the percentage of children in 
schools which are ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ are both reflecting the 
position back in March 2020. The suspension of Ofsted inspections 
means that these will not change until graded inspections re-start. 

 
Further information on the portfolio’s Council Plan performance are 
included at Appendix A. 

2.2 Budget Forecast Summary 

The net controllable budget for the Young 
People portfolio is £119.205m. 
 
The Revenue Budget Monitoring Statement 
prepared for quarter 2 indicates that there is a 
projected year-end overspend of £14.737m. 
This overspend will be supported by the use 
of £8.276m of Covid-19 funding allocated to 
the Council to support the costs incurred by 
the pandemic.  After the use of this funding 
the forecast position is an overspend of 
£6.461m. 

In addition to any use of earmarked reserves, 
the forecast outturn position includes one-off income of £1.390m.  This 
relates to  Dedicated Schools Grant income transferred to contribute to 
costs incurred within Children’s Services supporting Early Help services 
and children with additional needs. 

 

Projected outturn against 
target budget 

Page 9



 

Version 1  Page 4 

The significant areas which make up this projection are shown in the 
following table and graph below: 

Young People Budget Items 

Forecast Under/Overspend 

 

Page 10



 

Version 1  Page 5 

2.3 Key Variances 

2.3.1 Placements for Children in Care/Unable to remain at home, 
overspend £12.713m 
 
The overspend is due to a greater number of placements required than 
can be met from the current allocated budget. Placement numbers have 
continued to rise steadily during the year in line with increases in the 
number of children in care and the rate of increase has been greater 
since May/June of this year. There has been a net increase of 20 in the 
number of external residential placements since May/June 2020 bringing 
the total as at the end of September to 94. This is a greater rate of 
increase than that seen in recent years with placement numbers 5 higher 
than would have been expected on pre-covid trends. There has been a 
net increase of 45 in external fostering placements which were 297 as at 
the end of September. This is also a slightly higher rate of increase than 
has been experienced in the last two years and is also 5 placements 
higher than would have been expected on pre-covid trends. A planned 
introduction of a specialist fostering service for children with disabilities 
has been deferred for one year due to the tender closing date coinciding 
with the Covid-19 pandemic, resulting in no tenders to provide this 
service. 

2.3.2 Support for children with disabilities, overspend £0.386m 
The increased demand for support and the complex needs of some 
individual children has led to the costs exceeding the allocated budget. 

2.3.3 Children’s Safeguarding services, underspend £0.597m 
The department is underspending on admin and clerical support to social 
workers and within internal fostering and child protection teams where 
there have been reductions in travel expenditure due to staff working 
from home and undertaking many aspects of their roles virtually. Spend 
to support families in need and to prevent children coming into care is 
showing a reduction in the first half of the financial year compared to the 
previous year. In addition, expenditure on legal expenses associated with 
care proceedings is lower compared to the previous year. Offsetting this, 
there is an overspend on Starting Point where the service is operating 
with 2 to 3 additional Social Workers as well as a number of Business 
Services posts which are above the approved establishment budget in 
response to service pressures. 

2.3.4 Early Help and Preventative services, underspend £0.810m 
The underspend is due to vacant posts in Multi-Agency Teams, 
Children’s Centres, Youth support and Youth Offending Support. 

Page 11



 

Version 1  Page 6 

2.3.5 Home to School Transport, overspend £0.954m 
The forecast includes the supplier relief support grants paid to providers 
covering the period between March and July when schools were closed. 
There have been increases in the costs associated with transporting SEN 
pupils to school as a result of Covid-19 requirements and the Department 
for Education have provided grant funding to contribute to this increased 
cost. The amount of funding for the financial year to March 2021 has not 
been announced however the allocation for the first 6 weeks to cover 
costs up to mid-October will cover these costs so a neutral financial 
position has been assumed for this projection with expected costs being 
met by expected income. This additional cost is included within the row 
‘Specific Covid-19 costs”. 

2.3.6 Education Support services, overspend £3.720m 
The projected overspend has increased by £2.184m since that reported 
in the quarter 1 projection. This deterioration is almost entirely due to a 
change in the forecast outturn position of the Catering service providing 
meals to school pupils. The assumption made for the quarter 1 projection 
was that meals provided would revert to planned levels from September. 
Although schools have re-opened, the number of children taking meals 
provided by the Catering Service has reduced by around 19% compared 
to plan.This forecast has been prepared with only the first week of 
September sales available and the assumption has been made that this 
reduction in sales persists for the rest of the financial year.  

 
The Sport and Outdoor Education service has also been adversely 
affected by Covid-19 and has been unable to provide outdoor 
experiences and adventure activities since March. This has resulted in 
loss of income to the service and the net overspend is projected to be 
£1.330m for this financial year.  

 
The Education Improvement Service has adapted its traded services to 
operate virtually and the projected overspend of £0.220m primarily 
reflects the loss of income for the period March 2020 to July 2020. 

2.3.7 Pensions payable to former teachers and other staff, overspend 
£0.372m 
These costs represent pension obligations payable to teachers and other 
staff previously employed by the Authority. Most of the cost relates to 
staff who left under efficiency programmes during the early 1990s. 
Although the numbers of pensions being paid reduces year to year, the 
cost of the annual increase in respect of those pensions still in payment 
leads to this divergence from the allocated budget. 

Page 12



 

Version 1  Page 7 

2.3.8 Unallocated budget, underspend £2.294m 
This underspend comprises £0.282m of budget pressures funding which 
has not yet been allocated because projected spend is lower than the 
existing allocated budget. Finally, there is £2.282m of grant funding of 
which the largest item is the allocation from the Dedicated Schools Grant 
of £1.390m. No announcements have been made about the continuation 
of these funding streams beyond 31 March 2021 so these are being used 
to mitigate against current levels of spend including covering £0.205m of 
budget reductions which have not yet been applied to a specific service. 

2.4 Budget Savings 

Budget reductions totalling £2.350m were allocated for the year.   
The value of the savings initiatives which have been identified for 
implementation in the current year is £2.350m. 
The surplus between the total reductions expected to be achieved and the 
identified savings initiatives is £0.000m. 

 

Budget Savings 

 

Page 13



 

Version 1  Page 8 

 It is forecast that £1.126m of savings will have been achieved by the year-end. 
The table below shows performance against the target. 

Budget Savings Initiatives 

Notes 

1 Originally intended to be achieved by generating additional income from 
sales to schools and academies, plans affected by Covid-19. 

2 The PAUSE contract will avoid future costs. 

3 Tender deadline coincided with restrictions to prevent spread of Covid-19 
and no responses achieved. 

 

Page 14



 

Version 1  Page 9 

2.5 Growth Items and One-Off Funding 

The portfolio received the following additional budget allocations in 
2020/2021: 

2.5.1 Social Worker recruitment - £1.300m ongoing, £1.300m one-off 
This growth is part of a total allocation of £5.200m which is being added to 
Children’s Services budgets over 4 years. The investment is being 
deployed to increase the number of social workers to ensure that 
caseloads for individual workers are at manageable levels for their 
experience. 

2.5.2 Placement demand pressures - £11.000m ongoing 
This allocation recognised the increase in costs experienced within 
children’s social care as a result of both an increase in the quantity of 
placements required and the increased cost due to an increase in the 
complexity of the needs of children and young people. Costs have 
continued to increase during 2020-21 and there is concern over the 
wellbeing of children who have been less visible to school professionals 
during the first part of 2020-21. 

2.5.3 Home to School Transport SEN - £1.000m ongoing, £0.971m one-
off 
The allocation recognised both the increased pressures of greater 
numbers of children and young people with SEN and an increased cost of 
journeys and an additional pressure of transporting children and young 
people to pupil resource units or alternative provision when they have 
been permanently or temporarily excluded from mainstream schools. 

2.5.4 SEND assessment and planning - £0.600m ongoing 
The increase was allocated to cover the staffing to assess and plan 
provision for children and young people with SEN. 

2.5.5 Increase in Special Guardianship placements - £0.336m ongoing 
This increase has ensured that the budget is in line with the current level 
of costs payable to family members and others who have taken parental 
responsibility for children under a special guardianship order. 

2.5.6 Foster Carers - £0.100m ongoing 
The allocation covered the cost of the inflation increase applied to foster 
care allowances from April 2020. 

2.5.7 Care Leavers - £0.498m one-off 
Legislation has been enacted which places additional statutory duties on 
the Authority for care leavers. There is a shortfall between the additional 
funding currently being received from central government and the costs 
being incurred by the Authority in meeting these additional duties. 

Page 15



 

Version 1  Page 10 

2.5.8 Child Protection - £0.500m ongoing 
The allocation is towards the costs of staff that are currently required to 
respond to the increased number of children on child protection plans. 

2.5.9 Children in Care Legal Proceedings - £1.100m one-off 
This allocation is for the expenditure associated with court proceedings 
which have increased due to not only increased numbers of proceedings 
but also an increased use of external legal firms to present cases which 
has increased average costs per case. 

2.5.10 Support to Achieving Great Futures - £0.108m one-off 
To fund staff seconded to the project to review the pathways for people 
with disabilities and the services provided to them by the Authority. 

2.5.11 Preventative Support to Families - £1.000m one-off 
Expenditure supporting the children and families that the department 
works with has been increasing as the number of referrals and children 
identified as in need increases. 

2.5.12 Elective Home Education - £0.207m one-off 
The number of children who are educated at home by choice has been 
increasing leading to an increased need for staff to visit and assess the 
education provision to those children. 

2.5.13 Service Transformation - £0.438m one-off 
To identify opportunities to improve service quality and efficiency and 
work with managers to bring this change about. 

2.5.14 Quality Assurance SEND & Fostering - £0.214m one-off 
To introduce new processes that will enable managers to analyse the 
performance of the Fostering and SEND services. 

 
The service has commenced recruitment of the additional assessors 
required and these staff will be employed on one year contracts. The 
contracts will span across both the 2020-21 and 2021-22 financial years 
and therefore approval is requested to create an earmarked reserve of 
£122,000 to hold the resources required to fund the costs of the newly 
recruited staff where their contracts extend into 2021-22. 

Social Worker recruitment - £1.300m ongoing, £1.300m one-off 

Page 16



 

Version 1  Page 11 

2.6 Financial Risks 

There is a risk that the following issues could negatively impact on the 
portfolio’s forecast outturn position reported in the Forecast Summary 
above: 

Financial Risks 

Service Risk Sensitivity* Likelihood 

  £m 

1 = Low, 
5 = High 

Placements 
Increased number of 
children requiring 
placements. 

3.200 4 

Management, 
Finance, ICT 
and other 
support 
services 

Ex gratia or other payments 
to close disputes. 

0.020 1 

All 
Data security breach 
resulting in fine. 

0.500 3 

*Sensitivity represents the potential negative impact on the outturn position 
should the event occur. 
 

2.7 Earmarked Reserves 

Earmarked reserves totalling £6.471m are currently held to support future 
expenditure.  Details of these reserves are as follows: 

Reserves 

Page 17



 

Version 1  Page 12 

 

2.8 Debt Position 

The profile of the debt raised, relating to income receivable by services 
within the Children's Services department, is as follows: 

Debt Position 

 

Aged Debt over Time 

In the year up to 30 September 2020 the value of debt that has been written 
off totals £0.034m. 

3 Financial Considerations 

As detailed in the report. 

4 Other Considerations 

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, legal and human rights, 
equal opportunities, human resources, environmental, health and 
property and transport considerations. 

Page 18



 

Version 1  Page 13 

5 Key Decision 

No. 

6 Call-In 

Is it required that call-in be waived in respect of the decisions proposed in 
the report? No. 

7 Background Papers 

Held on file within the Children's Services Department. Officer contacts – 
Karen Gurney (finance), Sara Lewis (performance). 

8 Officer Recommendations 

That the Cabinet Member notes the report and considers whether there 
are any further actions that should be undertaken to improve the budget 
position moving forwards or to address performance, where it has not 
met the desired level. 

That the Cabinet Member notes the request to be made to Cabinet to 
approve the creation of an earmarked reserve to cover the employment 
costs of additional Quality Assurance staff which are expected to be 
partially incurred in 2021-22. 
 

 

Jane Parfrement Peter Handford 
Executive Director Director 
Children's Services Finance & ICT 

Page 19



Restricted 
 

Version 1  Page 14 

 

Young People Quarter 2 Performance Report 2020/2021 

Progress on Council Plan deliverables and key measures 

 

A focus on prevention and early intervention 

 

 

 

Reviewed the Council’s care and support offer for children with special educational needs and disabilities and adults to improve efficiency, value for 
money and customer outcomes 
 

 The achieving great futures (AGF)  workstream has been impacted by Covid-19. Delays 
to the workstream have been mitigated in the overall delivery plan. Learning from AGF 
has been used in the Children's Diagnostic and there are opportunities for greater 
impact working  across the whole life pathway. In addition there is a Special Educational 
Needs and Disabilities (SEND) action plan which is currently being led by the Local 
Area SEND Board. 

 Rating set at 'Review' as there is still a risk to the timetable which is dependent on 
timing of the restart of this programme. 

 In the previous two years over 94% of clients responding to our Adult Care survey have agreed that care and support services 
help improve their quality of life. Results of the survey in 2019/20 will be published later in 2020. 

 

 

 

Embedded our newly redesigned Early Help Offer for Children, Young People and Families 
 

 The work of the Early Help service has predominately been on-line during the Covid-19 period although in recent weeks the 
face to face visiting has increased. The workforce has been eager to be able to see families in person to get a true picture of 
the well being of the children and the resilience in the families. Children's Centres have been working closely with health 
colleagues around the engagement with children under 5 years of age and developing methods of support to help children in 
their speech and language development preschool. The teams continue to work on creative methods to enable group work on-

P
age 20



Restricted 
 

Version 1  Page 15 

line and the ability to share advice and support. An outline of the scope of the evaluation of the early help service has 
commenced. 

 

High performing council services 

 

 

 

Strived to ensure that all Council run children’s homes are ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ 
 

 Children's home inspections have been suspended since the end of March 2020 due to 
Covid-19. An interim inspection phase started from September 2020 and will last at least 
until December 2020 with the possibility of extension if measures for responding to and 
recovering from Covid-19 carry on into 2021. Inspections during this interim phase will 
be prioritised and will not include a graded judgement. The Council has 11 children's 
homes. At the point that inspections were suspended, nine homes (81.8%) were judged 
to be good or outstanding in their most recent inspection. There will be no opportunity to 
improve this performance position until full, graded-judgement inspections resume. 

 Derbyshire has had its first assurance visit to Glenholme children's home. This commenced virtually on 15 September and 
inspectors visited the home in person on 16th. As the visit was largely virtual the inspector benefitted from other professionals 
views in the 'team around the home' and was also able to meet one of the young people who live at the home.  The inspector 
confirmed that the home had tackled the issues identified in the last inspection and identified other ways in which the home 
could improve further. The staff team felt that the inspector was really approachable and understanding of the challenges that 
the home have been facing. This was a positive first assurance visit for Derbyshire. 

 All of the children's homes have continued to provide high quality care to our children in care throughout the Covid-19 period. 
Staffing has remained very strong despite difficulties with recruitment in some homes and challenges with cover for the waking 
night shifts where there are staffing gaps. 

P
age 21



Restricted 
 

Version 1  Page 16 

 

 

 

Worked with schools to ensure they increased the percentage of children in schools which are ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’, so that Derbyshire is in line 
with the national average 
 

 School inspections were suspended at the end of March due to Covid-19. Ofsted have 
started a phased return to inspection with an interim period of visits to schools and 
settings during the autumn term with an intention to resume full inspections in January 
2021, although the exact timing of this is being kept under review. During this interim 
phase from September 2020, Ofsted will prioritise and visit all inadequate schools and a 
sample of schools across the other Ofsted grades (outstanding, good, requires 
improvement). Ofsted have been clear that these visits are not inspections, will not result 
in a graded judgement but will be based around a series of professional conversations 
with senior and middle leaders. 

 At the point that school inspections were suspended, the percentage of pupils in 
Derbyshire attending primary schools that were judged to be good or outstanding was 
80.7% with performance below the national average of 87.9%, with Derbyshire ranked 
132 nationally. The percentage of secondary aged pupils attending schools judged to be 
good or better was 54.9% with performance significantly below the national average (79.5%) with Derbyshire ranked 138 
nationally. There will be no opportunity to influence this indicator until full, graded inspections of schools resume which will not 
be before January 2021. 

 

 

 

Continued to drive improvements in the delivery of children’s social care 
 

 Social care demand, which experienced a drop at the start of the Covid-19 national lockdown, has now recovered closer to pre-
Covid-19 levels. To date, services have been able to respond effectively, triaging new cases which are moving though to the 
locality teams for an assessment to be undertaken. During the quarter social care has continued to have a full compliment of 
staff which is to be commended as with all our workforce. Workers have continued to demonstrate a high level of performance 
against the statutory duties. Risk assessments continue to be regularly updated for all the children open to the service. These 
are signed off by a manager and determine the level of oversight needed regarding the welfare of the children. More face to 
face visiting has been undertaken (bespoke to the child and family's needs) by the social workers. In person visiting has been 
particularly necessary for newly referred cases where there has been no direct sight of the home circumstances. 

P
age 22



Restricted 
 

Version 1  Page 17 

 During the summer period workers took some leave which has been helpful to refresh colleagues. However, the morale of the 
workforce ebbs and flows and managers are working hard to maintain individual and group contact with their teams virtually. 
There are many creative methods being used to support staff, such as virtual break out rooms, virtual coffee mornings and 
lunch breaks, team meetings and training and development events. Gradually the numbers of workers spending time in the 
offices has increased, in line with risk assessments and PPE guidance. It is understood by workers that it is unsafe for everyone 
to return to office bases but many have expressed that they miss seeing and supporting their colleagues and being able to 
share reflections on social work practice which is so integral to the role. 

 

   

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

PUBLIC                                                                            Agenda Item No. 4 (b) 

 
Author:  Karen Gurney (x38755) 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE 
 

10 November 2020 
 

Joint Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services and the 
Director of Finance & ICT 

 
DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT MONITORING 2020-21 – QUARTER 2 

(as at 30 September 2020) 
 

(YOUNG PEOPLE) 
 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 

To provide the Cabinet Member with an update of the Revenue Budget 
position of the Dedicated Schools Grant (Young People portfolio) for 2020-21 
up to the end of September 2020 (Quarter 2). 
2. Information and Analysis 
2.1 Forecast Summary 

 
The expected Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and 6th form grant income due 
to the Authority in 2020-21 is £370.954m. 
 
The Revenue Budget Monitoring Statement prepared at quarter 2 shows 
projected year-end expenditure of £370.338m.  The expected underspend 
compared to income is £0.616m however this includes an underspend of 
£0.318m which is ring-fenced to schools, the underspend falling to the 
Authority is therefore £0.298m.  
 
This underspend includes the benefit of £1.325m which Schools Forum 
agreed could remain uncommitted to assist with the pressures within the DSG 
therefore the underlying overspend against in-year grant is £1.027m. 
 
The net total DSG reserves as at the end of 2019-20 were £0.188m surplus, 
within which the uncommitted DSG reserve stood at a deficit of £3.140m. 
 
The DfE have included provisions in the School and Early Years Finance 
(England) Regulations 2020 - which came into force in February 2020 - that a 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4(b)



 

2 
 

DSG deficit must be carried forward to be dealt with from future DSG income, 
unless the Secretary of State authorises the LA not to do this.  

The Authority will seek opportunities to make reductions in DSG spend in 
2020-21 where possible, and it is expected that this will be supplemented in 
2021-22 should Derbyshire receive another above-inflation increase in its 
DSG settlement. 

The significant areas of expenditure and income are shown in the table below: 
 

  
Controllable 

Budget  
£m 

Projected 
Actuals  

£m 

Forecast 
Over/(Under) 

Spend  
£m 

Expenditure    

Central School Services 
Block 

6.966  5.414  (1.552) 

Re-pooled school funding 4.495  4.177  (0.318) 

Early Years Block 41.165  41.207 0.042 

High Needs Block 67.867 69.079 1.212 

Schools Block 250.461 250.461 0.000  

Total Expenditure 370.954 370.338 (0.616) 

Dedicated Schools 
Grant Income 

(370.954) (370.954) 0.000 

(Surplus)/Deficit 0.000  (0.616) (0.616) 

 
2.2 Key Variances 

 
2.2.1 Central School Services Block, underspend £1.552m 

The unallocated growth of £1.325m forms the majority of this 
underspend.  The balance is primarily due to allocations to support 
schools to meet KS1 pupil/teacher ratios projected to be below the 
allocated budget. 
 

2.2.2 Re-pooled school funding, underspend £0.318m 
Projections for maternity costs and contingency payments for Primary 
schools are below allocated re-pooled amounts. 
 

2.2.3 High Needs Block, overspend £1.212m 
 
£0.201m of the overspend is due to the costs of the team supporting 
children and young people who have been permanently or temporarily 

Page 26



 

3 
 

excluded or are being supported as part of a preventative measure.  
This is due to increased numbers of children and young people being 
supported.  The additional support paid to primary schools for pupils 
with high needs is also projected to be above the allocated budget by 
£0.757m.  Additional places have been purchased at Derbyshire 
special schools and there has been an increase in forecast top-ups for 
individual pupils leading to a projected overspend of £0.832m in this 
area. 
 

2.3 Risks 
 

There is a risk that the following issues could negatively impact on the 
portfolio’s forecast outturn position reported in the Forecast Summary above: 
 
Service Risk Sensitivity* 

£m 
Likelihood 

1=Low 
5=High 

High needs block 
placements and 
top-ups 

Increased number of  
children requiring 
placements or support 

£0.750m - 
£1.250m 

4 

 
*Sensitivity represents the potential negative impact on the outturn position 
should the event occur. 
 
3. Financial Considerations 

 
As detailed in the report. 
 
4. Other Considerations 

 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, 
environmental, health, human resources, property, social value and transport 
considerations. 
 
5. Key Decision 

 
No 

 
6. Call-in 

 
No 

 
7. Background Papers 

 

Page 27



 

4 
 

Held on file within Children’s Services Department.  Officer contact details – 
Karen Gurney, karen.gurney@derbyshire.gov.uk. 
 
8. Officer Recommendations 

 
That the Cabinet Member notes the report. 
 

Jane Parfrement    Peter Handford 
Executive Director   Director of Finance 
Children’s Services           & ICT 

Page 28


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3(a) Confirmation of Nominations of School Governors
	3(b) Children’s Services Capital Programme 2020-21 - Allocation of Section 106 Capital
	4(a) Performance and Budget Monitoring/Forecast Outturn 2020/2021 as at Quarter 2
	4(b) Dedicated Schools Grant Monitoring 2020-21 – Quarter 2 (as at 30 September 2020)



